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November 8, 2024 
 
VIA EMAIL AND CERTIFIED MAIL 
Lynn Gelin 
City Attorney 
City Attorney’s Office 
gelinl@mydelraybeachfl.com  
200 NW 1 Ave 
Delray Beach, FL 33444 
and 
Alicia Gonzalez 
agonzalez@wsh-law.com  
 

RE:  DEMAND TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER WARRANTY DEED 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES, 255.22 

 
Dear Ms. Gelin and Ms. Gonzalez, 

I hope this letter finds you well. This firm represents 802 SE 5th Avenue LLC (for purposes 
of this letter, the “Owner”). In February of 2024, the Owner purchased the Property located at 802 
5th Avenue, Delray Beach, FL (the “Property”). The current shape of Owner’s Property can be seen 
outlined in yellow in the aerial below. The Owner’s predecessor in interest conveyed the area 
demarcated in red below (the “Alley”) to the City in 1963.  The Alley is part of platted lot 9, which 
is within the Property.  

In November of 1963, Owner’s predecessors in interest conveyed the Alley to the City of 
Delray Beach, FL (the “City”) “for public highway purposes…with the express understanding and 
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condition that should the same ever be discontinued or abandoned as a public highway the title to 
the same shall thereupon revert to and revest in the party of the first part, their heirs, administrators 
or assigns.” A copy of the quitclaim deed, which contains the conveyance to the City, is attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1.  

Since fee simple title to the Alley was conveyed to the City by Owner’s predecessors, the 
City has failed to utilize the right of way for public highway purposes, consistent with the terms 
of the dedication. In fact, there is no way for the City to utilize the right-of-way as intended as a 
public highway as the right-of-way is landlocked between Owner’s Property and the surrounding 
commercial buildings.  It does not connect with any other existing roadway. 

 Accordingly, in light of the City’s failure to maintain and manifest inability to use the right-
of-way for the purpose intended by the Owner’s predecessor in interest and 802 SE 5th Avenue 
LLC’s ownership of the adjoining Property on the eastern side of the right-of-way, Owner 
respectfully makes demand upon the City to execute and deliver a quitclaim deed to the right of 
way property to Owner in accordance with Florida Statutes, 255.22. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, 
255.22, “In the event any party owning adjoining land conveys real property, without receipt of 
valuable consideration, to any municipality for a specific purpose or use and if such county or 
municipality fails to use such property for such purpose for a period of 60 consecutive months . . 
. the municipality or county may execute and deliver a quitclaim deed to the party making such 
demand provided such party is the owner of land adjoining such property on at least one side.”  

 In an effort to streamline the issues, Owner acknowledges that the City has in place an 
abandonment procedure set forth in the municipal code, which allows residents of the jurisdiction 
to request abandonment of certain interests in real property, such as easements, from the City 
Commission. Requiring Owner to undergo this process would not make sense in this circumstance, 
as Owner would be unable to attain the remedy it seeks. Even if the Commission voted to abandon 
the Alley, Owner would still be required to file an action in circuit court to obtain a conveyance. 
The abandonment process does not give the relief herein requested, which is to transfer fee simple 
title back to adjoining successor in interest. Given the location of the Alley, which shows that there 
is literally no beneficial use which the City could derive from it, the Owner is hopeful that the 
parties will be able to achieve a mutually agreeable resolution, which avoids the need for 
unnecessary litigation to declare its ownership rights under Florida law. 

 A response to this demand is requested within ten (10) days receipt of this letter, 
affirming intent to place this request on upcoming commission meeting consent agenda. If 
you have any questions, my office is available by phone or e-mail at your convenience.  

      Sincerely,  
      /s/ Ryan Abrams  
      Ryan Abrams, Esq. 
      FOR THE FIRM  
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